
 
 

 

 

 

May 7, 2019 
 
 
 
VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL 
Fire Prevention and Building Safety Commission 
c/o Mr. Douglas Boyle, Executive Director 
Indiana Department of Homeland Security 
302 W. Washington St., Room 241 
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204 
Email:  doboyle@dhs.in.gov 
 
 RE: Proposed Property Maintenance Code by City of Charlestown 
  2019-OR-4 
 
Dear Commissioners of the Fire Prevention and Building Safety Commission: 
 
This letter concerns the City of Charlestown’s request to have the Commission 
approve its recently adopted property maintenance code, 2018-OR-23.  I am an 
attorney with Lorch Naville Ward LLC, a law firm in New Albany.  We 
represent a group of homeowners and landlords in Charlestown’s Pleasant Ridge 
neighborhood who have sued the City and a local developer named John Neace 
for conspiracy to deprive our clients of their civil rights in violation of the United 
States Constitution.  That case is pending in the United States District Court, 
Southern District of Indiana as Case No. 4:18-CV-00010. 
 
As alleged in our Complaint, the City, in conspiracy with Mr. Neace, imposed 
thousands of dollars in fine, per day, against some of our clients – fines which 
the City offered to waive, but only if our clients agreed to sell their real estate to 
John Neace for $10,000 per home. Evidence indicates the City intends to resume 
these abusive fines as soon as your Commission approves the City’s proposed 
Ordinance No. 2019-OR-4. 
 
We understand that you may be reluctant take our clients at their word that the 
City has engaged in this behavior – or that the City intends to do so in the future.  
Consequently, I am enclosing several documents for the record.   
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First, find enclosed a copy of the sworn affidavit of someone who has nothing to gain from 
coming forward: a real estate attorney from Salem, Indiana named Lewis Maudlin.  As shown by 
his affidavit, Mr. Maudlin had a client who owned a home in Pleasant Ridge, and the City very 
explicitly demanded that Mr. Maudlin’s client sell the house for $10,000 or face thousands of 
dollars in unwaivable fines.  Neither Mr. Maudlin nor his client have any financial interest in our 
lawsuit or in the outcome of your decision to approve or deny Ordinance No. 2019-OR-4. 
 
Second, I am enclosing a copy of an inspection notice that the City of Charlestown issued in 
March of 2019 to one of my clients who still owns a house in Pleasant Ridge. As you can see, the 
City scheduled my client’s property for inspection on April 3, 2019 – exactly one day after your 
Commission was scheduled to vote to approve Ordinance No. 2019-OR-4. 
 
Third, I am also enclosing a copy of a Motion for Default Judgment filed by the City against one 
of my clients, Maria Sanchez.  Ms. Sanchez refused to sell her house to Neace for $10,000.  So, 
as this document shows, the City summarily filed a lawsuit against Ms. Sanchez for $330,000 in 
fines on her single, duplex home. 
 
Taken together, this evidence shows 2 things: (1) that the City has previously used its fining 
authority to benefit a private developer and (2) that the City intends to resume this conspiracy as 
soon as the Fire Prevention and Building Safety Commission approves Ordinance No. 2019-OR-
4. 
 
You may wonder what you, as members of the Fire Prevention and Building Safety Commission, 
can do about any of this.  Stated another way: How does this impact your decision whether to 
approve or deny Ordinance No. 2019-OR-4? 
 
Here’s how: 
 
An administrative agency cannot take any action that is “contrary to law.”  John Malone 
Enterprises, Inc. v. Schaeffer, 674 N.E.2d 599, 606 (Ind. Ct. App. 1996).  “An administrative 
decision is contrary to law if any statute, constitutional provision, legal principle, or rule of 
substantive or procedural law has been violated.”  Id.  In other words, the Fire Prevention and 
Building Safety Commission cannot approve an ordinance that the Commission concludes 
violates Indiana law or the Indiana or United States Constitutions.  
 
Ordinance No. 2019-OR-4 is unconstitutional on its face under both the Due Process Clause of 
the 14th Amendment to the US Constitution and the “excessive fines” provision of the 8th 
Amendment to the US Constitution – and under corollary provisions of the Indiana Constitution.   
 
Specifically, Section 106.5 of 2019-OR-4 provides that fines can be assessed in the amount of 
$1,500 per violation per day and begin to accrue, “effective immediately upon discovery by the 
Code Official[.]”  These fines take effect before the property owner receives notice.  So, for 
example, if a property owner receives a mailed, written Notice of Violation a week after the City 
discovers 4 violations on her property, she would already owe the City $42,000 at the time she 
first learns of the violations.  This runs afoul of both the excessive fines provision of the 8th 
Amendment and the due process requirements of the US Constitution.  Similarly, this provision 
violates the following, corresponding provisions of the Indiana Constitution: Art. 1, Sec. 16 



 
 

 

(“Excessive fines shall not be imposed. . . . All penalties shall be proportioned to the nature of 
the offense.”) and Art. 1, Sec. 12 (All persons entitled to remedy by “due course of law”). 
 
Moreover, once fines have been imposed on a property, Section 107.5 of 2019-OR-4 gives the 
City veto power over any sale of the real estate.  In other words, once the City imposes fines on a 
privately owned home, the City then is able to mandate to whom the property may be sold.  This 
results in the City taking private property rights without compensation, in violation of the 
Indiana Constitution, Art. 1, § 21. 
 
In conclusion, we would ask that you reject the City of Charlestown’s 2019-OR-4, as proposed, 
for violating Indiana law.  Pursuant to Indiana Code 32-13-2-5.5(6), you must “specify the 
defects in the ordinance or other regulation that are the basis for the denial.”  I would suggest 
you cite Sections 106.5 and 107.5 of the proposed ordinance for violating Art. 1, Sections. 12, 
Sec. 16, and 21 of the Indiana Constitution.  
 
Very truly yours, 
 
LORCH NAVILLE WARD LLC 
 
 
 
J. David Agnew 
dagnew@lnwlegal.com 
 
JDA/cls 
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